Questions 27-36 Submitted in Response to:
BAA No. NNJ10345432K for the Innovative Lunar Demonstrations Data (ILDD)
I.  The following questions have been submitted in response to the ILDD BAA:
27.  Question:  Would you clarify what constitutes "research" by foreign team members, which would be disqualified from compensation?

Answer:  Please see NASA’s earlier response to Question 11.  As stated in the cover letter to the BAA and in the Announcement, “NASA’s intent is to obtain data and gather knowledge,” as such, this entire activity is considered research.  

28. Question:   As a first time responder to a NASA BAA, and as a Small and Disadvantaged Business, is there a redacted response to a previous BAA of similar cost and complexity that could be posted as a guideline?

Answer:  JSC’s Industry Assistance Office provides resources that may be helpful to small or disadvantaged businesses (website: http://procurement.jsc.nasa.gov/bd35page.htm).  However, NASA does not intend to release all or a portion of responses received in response to prior BAAs as part of this competition.  Doing so would not be consistent with protecting the confidential business information NASA may have received in response to a solicitation.  Publicly releasable information may be obtained in accordance with the Freedom of Information Act.
 

29. Question:  When will this amendment to the BAA released?  Will the ORCA report be sufficient?

Answer:  Amendment No. 1 was released on August 31, 2010.  If the ORCA data are current within the past 12 months, then yes this would be sufficient.

30. Question:  RE: CLIN1.  The SDR data would be generated after the award of an IDIQ contract.  Of the top ten risks identified by the offeror, is it the intent of this submittal to tentatively choose one of these risks in this submittal?  If the offeror is selected, then that particular risk may be changed as the SDR is developed.  How is that eventuality covered?

Answer:  To provide additional clarification, please consider again Section VI Line Item 2 of the BAA.  It provides instructions about the items required for this proposal.  The following clarification is offered regarding the proposal requirements for Technical Approach. If in the course of developing your Concept of Operations, Conceptual Vehicle Design description or description of Demonstrated Performance with Relevant Technical Endeavors you propose information about how you may cover certain CLINs that would be reasonable.
However, you are not required to provide detailed specifics into your approach for each CLIN as part of the initial proposal in response to the BAA.  The ILDD contracts expected to result from this BAA will be indefinite delivery, indefinite quantity (ID/IQ) contracts that anticipate future task plan proposals being submitted by ILDD contractors that will address details about specific CLINs.  Those future task plan proposals would address contractors’ approach(es) to each CLIN that is competed after award of the basic ILDD contracts. The Government will evaluate such future task plan proposals to determine which contractor(s) will receive task order award(s) for any orders placed under the ILDD contracts beyond the contract’s minimum order of a System Definition Review (SDR) data package.  
Only firms awarded an ILDD contract resulting from this ILDD BAA competition will be permitted to submit task plan proposals in the future to compete on CLINs 1-4.  With regard to the SDR package, it is required only after a firm is awarded an ILDD contract. If an ILDD contractor’s top ten risk list happened to change between submission of its SDR data package and a point in time that the Government may request task plan proposals to complete the work under CLIN 1 (or other CLINs), the future task plan proposal for the affected CLIN would be an appropriate place to address this change. 

31. Question:  RE: Clin3.  If this is a mission simulation, how will the presented data be verified as accurate by NASA?

Answer:  Please see our previous response to question 25. To be clear, this procurement seeks to acquire data obtained through non-NASA flight hardware in performance of a real mission. Specifically for CLIN 3 this would mean data from hardware being processed in a Pre-Launch phase (including integration with the launch vehicle), In-Flight Activities phase (via a real launch, Earth departure burn, etc.), and Lunar Landing Phase (including the physical landing on the Moon).  

32. Question:  RE: CLIN4.  The enhanced capabilities specifically refer to a human mission.  The background suggests that NASA is interested in small robotic missions which would verify specific capabilities to support future human missions.  Is it allowable to propose robotic missions demonstrating ISRU capabilities as one of the supportive missions in this BAA?  How would the requirements of CLIN4 be met by a strictly robotic mission profile? 

Answer:  Proposers are not required to address how it would support each CLIN in the BAA at this time.  Any request for a task plan proposal for CLIN 4 in the future will expand upon the specific objectives of each sub-CLIN within CLIN 4 to assist ILDD contractors in preparing their task plan proposals for those requirements.  An ILDD contractor might choose to utilize In-situ resource utilization (ISRU) as a means to help achieve one of the tasks outlined in CLIN 4, but it would have to be within the scope of providing the specific data requested.  Only firms selected for award of an ILDD contract resulting from this BAA competition will be invited to submit task plan proposals to compete for award of CLIN 4 work.  Please see the response to question 30 for further clarification.
33. Question:  RE: Schedule K certifications through the ORCA site and related certifications.  Is there governmental assistance available for an SDB offeror to complete the certification process for the first time?


Answer:  Paragraph (d) in Section K of the Model Contract provides the Online Representations and Certifications Application (ORCA) website at http://orca.bpn.gov which provides additional instructions on how to register and fill out the necessary information. 

34. Question:  RE: Adequate financial resources, in Part 2 Business Model.  Should the offeror secure an award, will a Small Disadvantaged Business be allowed to use the award as collateral for a bank loan for work described in the award?
Answer:   NASA cannot predict what any particular lending institution will consider as acceptable collateral for a loan.
35. Question:  RE: Financial Plan, in Part 2 Business Model.  The possible contract awards appear to preclude the accomplishment of any actual lunar mission and provide for limited hardware construction.  Are the funding quantities sought meant to estimate the major simulated mission phases only?

Answer:  Consistent with the answer to question 31, NASA intends to purchase data through this procurement.  This procurement is not intended to purchase, acquire, or finance the development of hardware.  NASA understands that the actual lunar mission(s) about which NASA intends to acquire data will require a company incurring costs well in excess of the price established in this BAA.  Securing those additional funds remains the responsibility of the offeror. The Business Strategy and Financial Plan (as described in Section VI Line Item 2 Part 2: Business Model, in the BAA) are intended to provide the Government with insight needed to evaluate proposals to determine which proposals should be selected for award of an ILDD contract in accordance with the stated proposal evaluation criteria.  

36. Question:  In the description for CLIN 2: Ground Test/Mission Simulation of Flight Hardware, NASA has defined the requirements to satisfy this CLIN as a demonstration that tests “the flight spacecraft systems through the actual mission profile sequences” resulting in “proving that the design, operations, and integration of the various elements into an overall functioning system will meet mission objectives”. Would an early Design Verification Test (DVT) that tests the basic functions of a prototype lunar lander system in a critical flight mode (aka landing) qualify for award under this CLIN or would the demonstration need to involve the actual flight system which is at or near readiness to be shipped to the launch site in its flight configuration, aka a final System Verification Test (SVT)?
Answer:  An offeror does not need to propose approaches to specific CLINs in its proposal response to this BAA.  In responding to this BAA, a proposal should describe how the offeror plans to accomplish the overall mission of placing a robotic lander on the Moon (as described in the BAA Section VI Line Item 2). Should a firm be awarded an ILDD contract resulting from this BAA competition, then it would be afforded an opportunity to propose specific solution(s) to any CLIN for which the Government may request task plan proposals in the future.  In accordance with the ordering procedures contained in the ILDD model contract (provided with amendment 1 to this BAA), the contracting officer will provide those firms awarded ILDD contracts additional information regarding requirements that need to address in their task plan proposals for specific CLINs, inclusive of CLIN 2.
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